
MORGAN COUNTY COMMISSION 

A G E N D A  

February 02, 2021 

10:00 AM 

150 East Washington Street, Madison, GA 

2nd Floor Meeting Room 
 

 

Pledge and Invocation 
  

Agenda Approval 
  

Presentations 
1. Scheduled Public Comment-Charles Keith Pharr 

  

Minutes 
2. January 05, 2021-Public Hearing 

3. January 05, 2021-BOC Meeting 

4. January 19, 2021-BOC Meeting 

  

Consent Agenda 
5. Motion to accept as information the January 2021 payables to include General Fund in the amount 

of $623,043.29, TSPLOST in the amount of $693,169.67, SPLOST in the amount of $179,270.31, 

General Fund electronic payments in the amount of $367,421.15 and the January 2021 financials. 

  

Time Certain 
 

11:00 AM Planning Commission 
  

Planning Commission New Business 
6. Ellis & Crystal Johnson are requesting conditional use approval to allow a church on 19.79 

acres located at 1051 Meadow Lane (Tax Parcel 042-003G). 

 

  

New Business 
7. Courthouse Clocktower Repairs 

8. County Manager Report 

9. Public Comments on Agenda Items 

- 1 -



- 2 -



January 05, 2021  

Public Hearing 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 

THE HONORABLE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, MADISON, GEORGIA, 

MET THIS DAY FOR A PUBLIC HEARING.   

 
MEETING WAS HELD ON THE SECOND FLOOR OF THE ADMINISTRATION BUILDING. 

 

PRESENT: Chairman Philipp von Hanstein, Vice-Chair Ben Riden, Jr., Commissioners Bill 

Kurtz, Donald Harris and Andy A. Ainslie, Jr. 

 

STAFF: County Manager Adam Mestres, Planning Director Chuck Jarrell, Procurement 

Director Mark Williams, County Attorney Christian Henry, and Staff Member 

Kim Cox.       

 

The public hearing was called to order at 9:30 a.m. 
 

PUBLIC HEARING-PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS 

Planning Director, Chuck Jarrell briefly reviewed the proposed development regulation changes. 

 

Chairman von Hanstein opened the floor for public comment. 

Public comments were made by:  

Kay Almand, Spears Road 

Keith Almand, Spears Road 

Kevin Pollard, Morgan County Resident 

Cary Tanner, Spears Road 

Sam Ball, Dixie Avenue 

 

Residents that spoke, supported the moratorium, and stated they would like to see the moratorium 

extended to further review the proposed changes and submit feedback to Commissioners. 

 

The Board will discuss and potentially vote on the proposed regulations at the February 19, 2021 

meeting. 

 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Philipp von Hanstein, Chairman 

 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

Leslie Brandt, County Clerk       

- 3 -



January 05, 2021 

BOC Regular Meeting 
 

Page 1 of 4 
 

 

THE HONORABLE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, MADISON, GEORGIA, 

MET THIS DAY IN REGULAR SESSION.   

 
MEETING WAS HELD ON THE SECOND FLOOR OF THE ADMINISTRATION BUILDING. 

 

PRESENT: Chairman Philipp von Hanstein, Vice-Chair Ben Riden, Jr., Commissioners Bill 

Kurtz, Donald Harris and Andy A. Ainslie, Jr. 

 

STAFF: County Manager Adam Mestres, Procurement Director Mark Williams, County 

Attorney Christian Henry, and Staff Member Kim Cox.       

 

The meeting was called to order at 10:00 a.m., followed by the Pledge of Allegiance and 

Invocation. 
 

AGENDA APPROVAL 
  

Motion made by Commissioner Riden, Seconded by Commissioner Harris to approve agenda 

with the following additions:  Development Regulations under Unfinished Business and Real 

Estate under Executive.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

MORGAN MEDICAL CENTER AUDIT PRESENTATION 

Kyle Wilkerson, CFO of Morgan Medical Center and Ralph Castillo, CEO, presented the FY20 

hospital audit. 

 

ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN AND VICE-CHAIRMAN FOR 2021 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ainslie, Seconded by Commissioner Harris to nominate 

Commissioner von Hanstein as Chair for year 2021.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ainslie, Seconded by Commissioner Harris to nominate 

Commissioner Riden as Vice-Chair for year 2021.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

MINUTES 

December 01, 2020 
December 15, 2020 

December 17, 2020 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Riden, Seconded by Commissioner Harris to approve the minutes 

as presented.  Unanimously Approved. 

   

CONSENT AGENDA 

Motion to accept as information the December 2020 payables to include General Fund in the 

amount of $478,843.44, TSPLOST in the amount of $150,533.26, SPLOST in the amount 

of $197,363.54, General Fund electronic payments in the amount of $37,410.79 and the 

December 2020 financials. 

 

- 4 -



January 05, 2021 

BOC Regular Meeting 
 

Page 2 of 4 
 

MOTION by Commissioner Riden, Seconded by Commissioner Harris to approve the consent 

agenda as presented. Unanimously Approved. 

 

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS 

Chairman von Hanstein opened the floor for public comments regarding the proposed 

development regulations from the Public Hearing that was held prior at 9:30 a.m.  However, no 

public comments were made. 

 

COUNTY MANAGER REPORT 

County Manager, Adam Mestres, presented a monthly overview of Morgan County government's 

current projects and/or issues. 

 

JAMES & STEPHANIE HARDEN ARE REQUESTING A VARIANCE TO THE 

REAR SETBACK FOR 5.39 ACRES LOCATED AT 1050 SAILVIEW DRIVE 

(TAX PARCEL 065C-001) 

James & Stephanie Harden are requesting a variance to the rear setback for property located at 

1050 Sailview Drive. The property is 5.39 acres, which makes it one of the largest lots in the 

Sailview subdivision. The Sailview regulations require a 100’ setback, and the Harden’s are 

requesting a 40’ variance to the periphery setback. 

   

Chairman von Hanstein allowed proponents to speak: 

Applicant, James Harden spoke in favor of the application.  He stated the request does not 

negatively impact the neighbors or subdivision.  The Harden’s have conducted drainage 

and soil tests that show the desired placement of the house will allow the basement 

structure to be located in dry soil. 

 

Chairman von Hanstein allowed opponents to speak: 

No one spoke in opposition. 

 

No action was taken.  The applicant withdrew the application to work with the Planning 

Staff on a 20’ variance instead of the 40’ variance. 

 
STUART MAGILL IS REQUESTING CONDITIONAL USE APPROVAL OF AN ACCESSORY 

DWELLING ON 15.1 ACRES LOCATED AT 1200 WHITE OAK WAY (TAX PARCEL 066C-

022) 

The applicant is requesting approval for an accessory dwelling on 15.1 acres.  The applicant has 

submitted a building permit application for a three-bedroom principal dwelling.  They are waiting 

to pick up the application until a decision is made today regarding the conditional use request as 

they want to construct both dwellings at the same time.  If approved, the site plan shows the 

dwellings will share the same driveway.  Planning staff would ensure the same meter and address 

during the building process.   

 

The accessory dwelling would be located approximately 40’ from the primary dwelling.  The 

primary dwelling is 4,890 square feet (2,445 heated) and contains 3 bedrooms.  The accessory 

dwelling would be 600 square feet, located on the 1st floor of the garage behind the garage parking 

area. The floorplan shows a one bedroom/bathroom and living/kitchen area.  The planning 

- 5 -



January 05, 2021 

BOC Regular Meeting 
 

Page 3 of 4 
 

commission was concerned the garage appears to have a second floor.  The applicant said the 

second floor would be unfinished.  

 

The applicant’s letter states that the accessory building apartment is desired so that visiting 

relatives will have a place to stay. Consideration should be given to whether this use will meet 

the intent of the Ordinance, which states the primary purpose of accessory dwellings and 

accessory building apartments is to provide living quarters for family members to provide care 

to relatives in need of assistance. 
  

The Planning Commission vote was tied and broken by the Chairman in favor of the applicant. 
 

Chairman von Hanstein allowed proponents to speak: 

Applicant, Stuart Magill spoke in favor of the application.  Mr. Magill stated the accessory 

dwelling would be used to house his adult children and in-laws when they visit.  He also stated, 

he does not intend to rent the dwelling. 

 

Chairman von Hanstein allowed opponents to speak: 

No one spoke in opposition. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Kurtz, seconded by Commissioner Harris to approve the 

conditional use request for an accessory dwelling on 15.1 acres located at 1200 White Oak Way 

with the following conditions:  the primary dwelling and accessory dwelling must share a 

driveway and meter, both dwellings must have the same architecture, the accessory dwelling is 

for private use only, and the accessory dwelling cannot be rented.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS ON AGENDA ITEMS 

Public comments were made by: 

Gary Savage, Buckhead Resident 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ainslie, seconded by Commissioner Riden to exit regular 

session.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION- REAL ESTATE 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ainslie, seconded by Commissioner Riden to enter Executive 

Session to discuss real estate. Unanimously Approved.  (Original signed Affidavit in Executive 

Session Legal Requirement Book). 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ainslie, seconded by Commissioner Riden to exit Executive 

Session and adjourn.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Philipp von Hanstein, Chairman 

 

ATTEST: 

 

- 6 -



January 05, 2021 

BOC Regular Meeting 
 

Page 4 of 4 
 

________________________________ 

Leslie Brandt, County Clerk       

- 7 -



January 19, 2021 

BOC Regular Meeting 
 

Page 1 of 4 
 

 

 

THE HONORABLE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, MADISON, GEORGIA, 

MET THIS DAY IN REGULAR SESSION. 

 
MEETING WAS HELD ON THE SECOND FLOOR OF THE ADMINISTRATION BUILDING. 

 

PRESENT: Chairman Philipp von Hanstein, Vice-Chair Ben Riden, Jr., Commissioners Bill 

Kurtz, Donald Harris and Andy A. Ainslie, Jr. 

STAFF: County Manager Adam Mestres, County Attorney Christian Henry, Procurement 

Director Mark Williams, and County Clerk Leslie Brandt. 

 

 

The meeting was called to order at 5:00 p.m., followed by the Pledge of Allegiance and 

Invocation. 
 

AGENDA APPROVAL 

 

Motion by Commissioner Ainslie, Seconded by Commissioner Harris to approve agenda with 

the following addition:  Personnel, under Executive.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

FY2020 AUDIT PRESENTATION 

Josh Carroll with Mauldin and Jenkins presented the FY2020 audit. 

 

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS 

Planning Director, Chuck Jarrell discussed topic points from public comments with the Board.  

Topics discussed were: agriculture subdivision lot size & road frontage, limited legacy 

subdivisions, minor subdivision splits & road frontage, and conservation subdivisions minimum 

open space, sidewalks, and streetlights. 

 

The Board agreed, the 20-acre lot size for agricultural subdivisions was excessive and suggested 

lowering the lot size to 15 acres.  They were also in consensus with allowing three divisions on 

minor subdivisions with no increase in road frontage. 

 

Motion by Commissioner Kurtz, Seconded by Commissioner Riden to extend the temporary 

moratorium on applications for subdivisions through March 2, 2021.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

Chairman von Hanstein allowed public comments on the Proposed Development Regulations 

Comments were made by: 

William Zachary, Enterprise Road 

Doug Roberts, Parks Mill Road 

Josh Wheat, Parks Mill Road 

Andrea Byer, Morgan County Resident 

Steve Powell, Morgan County Property Owner 

Jack Bone, Buckhead Resident 

Charles Henry, Morgan County Resident 

- 8 -



January 19, 2021 

BOC Regular Meeting 
 

Page 2 of 4 
 

Russell Brooks, Atlanta Highway 

 

Residents were in opposition of the proposed development regulations and felt their property 

rights would be taken away with the restrictive changes.  Residents stated the agricultural 

subdivision lot size and road frontage requirement were excessive, and that the restrictions would 

devalue property. It was also stated the legacy definition should be amended to include 

grandchildren and reduce the number of years for a legacy split.   

 

SEWELL CHURCH ROAD AND STANTON ROAD ABANDONMENT-Discussion Only 

The Joint Development Authority (JDA) approached the County to request road abandonment 

for a portion of Sewell Church Road from the dirt section to the bridge at the interstate 

(approximately 3,740 feet) and Stanton Road in its entirety.  The JDA owns both sides of the 

roadway for the portion they are requesting abandonment for.  If the Board wishes to proceed 

with the request, notice of a public hearing will be ran in the legal organ for two weeks and all 

homeowners along the the road will be given notice via letters. 

2021 LMIG PROJECT LIST 

County Manager, Adam Mestres presented the proposed FY2021 LMIG project list. 

 
 

Motion by Commissioner Riden, Seconded by Commissioner Kurtz to approve the proposed 

FY2021 LMIG project list and to allow the Chairman to sign necessary documents to apply for 

the FY2021 LMIG funding grant.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

COMPACTOR FOR NEWBORN ROAD PROJECT 

Procurement Director, Mark Williams requested to purchase a self-contained compacter for the 

Newborn Road Project.  The compactor may be installed without the need to construct a drive-

up ramp.  Williams recommended the units be purchased from Baker's Waste Equipment for 

$24,054, and a budget amendment to transfer $24,054 from the Capital Project Fund to Solid 

Waste Fund. 

 

- 9 -



January 19, 2021 

BOC Regular Meeting 
 

Page 3 of 4 
 

Motion by Commissioner Ainslie, Seconded by Commissioner Harris to approve the purchase 

of a self-contained compactor from Baker’s Waste Equipment for $24,054 and to make a budget 

amendment transferring $24,054 from the Capital Projects Fund to the Solid Waste Fund.  

Unanimously Approved. 

 

SOLID WASTE FACILITY REPAIRS 

Procurement Director, Mark Williams stated several steel panels have fallen off or broken away 

from the concrete wall inside the waste loading area and need to be replaced. Three local vendors 

were contacted to provide a quote to perform the work.  Two of the vendors did not provide a 

quote.  Bradley Welding Services originally provided a quote of $12,900.  Due to recent increases 

in steel, the quote increased to $14,400.  Williams recommended that Bradley Welding Services 

perform the work for $14,400 and $14,400 be transferred from capital projects fund to solid waste 

fund. 

 

Motion by Commissioner Harris, Seconded by Commissioner Kurtz to award the project to 

Bradley Welding Services for $14,400 and make a budget amendment to transfer $14,400 from 

the Capital Projects Fund to the Solid Waste Fund.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

REPLACEMENT OF COMPACTORS 

Procurement Director, Mark Williams recommended the compactors at the Buckhead site, 

Apalachee site and Doster Road site be replaced with new units. The current units are over 20 

years old and are in need of replacement. The installation of the compactors will include a vertical 

chute with a 30 inch by 30 inch opening for trash to be placed. The units will be programmed to 

auto compact based upon the need of the site. Williams recommended the units be purchased 

from Container Repair Service for $75,878.58 and a budget amendment to transfer funds from 

the Capital Project Fund to Solid Waste Fund. 

 

Motion by Commissioner Kurtz, Seconded by Commissioner Harris to purchase 3 compactors 

from Container Repair Service for $75,878.58 and to make a budget amendment transferring 

$75,878.58 from the Capital Projects Fund to the Solid Waste Fund.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

ACCG INMATE MEDICAL SAVINGS PROGRAM 

Procurement Director, Mark Williams stated, that in conjunction with the new contract with 

CorrCare for inmate medical services, the Sheriff’s Office is requesting to participate in the 

ACCG Inmate Medical Savings Program. 

 

Motion by Commissioner Riden, Seconded by Commissioner Harris to approve entering the 

ACCG Inmate Medical Savings Program and authorize the Chairman to sign necessary 

documents.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

COMMISSIONER LIAISON REPORTS 

Commissioners gave updates on Liaison assignments. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS ON AGENDA ITEMS 

Public comments were made by: 

Black McCormack, Morgan County Resident 

 

- 10 -



January 19, 2021 

BOC Regular Meeting 
 

Page 4 of 4 
 

MOTION by Commissioner Ainslie, seconded by Commissioner Riden to exit regular session 

7:52 p.m.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION- PERSONNEL 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ainslie, seconded by Commissioner Riden to enter Executive 

Session to discuss personnel at 7:53 p.m. Unanimously Approved.  (Original signed Affidavit in 

Executive Session Legal Requirement Book). 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ainslie, seconded by Commissioner Riden to exit Executive 

Session and adjourn regular session at 8:03 p.m.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Philipp von Hanstein, Chairman 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Leslie Brandt, County Clerk        

- 11 -



- 12 -



- 13 -



- 14 -



- 15 -



- 16 -



- 17 -



- 18 -



- 19 -



- 20 -



- 21 -



- 22 -



- 23 -



 
 

1 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 
Madison, Georgia  30650 

           

   Staff Report 

    Morgan County Planning Commission 

  

Property location: 1051 Meadow Lane    

Property tax parcel: 042-003G  

Acreage: 19.79 acres  

Applicant: Ellis & Crystal Johnson 

Applicant’s Agent:    

Property Owner: Ellis & Crystal Johnson 

Existing Use: Bed & Breakfast, Event Facility 

Proposed Use: Bed & Breakfast, Event Facility, temporary church  

 

Summary 

Ellis & Crystal 

Johnson are 

requesting 

conditional use 

approval to 

operate a 

church at the 

Farmhouse Inn, 

as known as 

Hundred Acre 

Farm, located at 

1051 Meadow 

Lane. This is the 

second time the 

applicants have 

requested 

approval for a 

church at this 

location. Both 

requests have 

been for 

temporary 

church services.  

 

 

Petition for:  Conditional Use – Church 

        

- 24 -



 
 

2 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 
Madison, Georgia  30650 

The 2019 application was approved to hold church services for 12 months. Any further services would 

require complete compliance with the Zoning Ordinance including paved parking. The 12 month 

approval expired in October 2020. Both requests are to allow Sunday services for the same church 

organization, Center Pointe Church. Center Pointe received conditional use approval to construct a 

church in April 2019. That approval has now expired as no construction has occurred. The church will 

have to submit another conditional use application to move forward.   

 

Excerpts from previous meetings  

        
Excerpt from October 24, 2019 Planning Commission 

 

IV.   Ellis and Crystal Johnson are requesting conditional use approval to locate a  

        Neighborhood church on 19.79 acres located at 1051 Meadow Lane (Tax 

        Parcel 043-002G) 

 

Mr. Jarrell presented the Staff Report and explained how the church came to be located on the 

Johnson property. He described the request by a local church to use the building for regular 

services. He noted the sign placed in front of the building. He asked the Planning Commission 

whether they wanted to treat the structure as a new church or as a historic church, noting that 

parking for a historic church is typically gravel. He also asked if the entire property should be 

included in the provision under specific regulations for churches which required any additional 

structure to obtain conditional use approval. The Planning Commission confirmed that the 

Church would continue to be owned and operated by the Johnsons. The members discussed 

consequences of paving, including storm water and detention, and debated whether the church 

should be considered a historic church since it had been moved and remodeled.  

 

Catherine Lozano spoke on behalf of the applicants and explained that the intent of the request 

was never to operate the church as a full time, every Sunday, operation. She stated that they were 

approached by a congregation needing a temporary location, and that they had a 3-month 

agreement with that congregation. She also informed the members that the applicants wanted the 

building, not only to use as part of their event facility, but for visitors to the Farmhouse Inn to 

use during their visit. She confirmed that there is no interest to market the building as a church 

for rent.  

 

 No one spoke in favor of or in opposition to the application.  

 

The Planning Commission questioned whether the application should be treated differently as a 

rental church, and whether it mattered that the currently-renting congregation could continue to 

extend their contract. The members debated if the church could be considered a weekly event 

through the event facility and if paving should be required when the event facility has been 

allowed gravel parking.  

 

Motion:  Mr. Campbell made a motion to recommend approval of the conditional use application 

for a church at 1051 Meadow Lane with the condition that if use as a church for regular services 

- 25 -



 
 

3 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 
Madison, Georgia  30650 

continues past 12 months from date of approval, the church must comply with all applicable 

zoning ordinances, with specific mention of parking requirements.   

Second:  Mr. Myers 

Vote:  8:0 The vote to recommend approval of the conditional use application for a church at 

1051 Meadow Lane with condition was unanimously approved.  
 

Excerpt from Board of Commissioners November 5, 2019 

 

CONDITIONAL USE FOR ELLIS AND CRYSTAL JOHNSON 

Senior Planner, Tara Cooner stated in 2016, the historic Sugar Creek Baptist Church building 

was saved from demolition by moving the building to Hundred Acre Farm, where it would be 

used for weddings as part of the event facility operated by the applicants. Staff contacted the 

Johnsons when it was discovered that a local congregation was seeking a home and had started 

having Sunday service in the church building. The Zoning Ordinance requires conditional use 

approval for a church. The Planning Commission debated whether the building should be 

considered historic or new, particularly with regard to parking. Historic churches typically have 

gravel parking, whereas new churches are required to have paving. By building code, the 

building is considered new. Further to the debate is that the church is on the same parcel as an 

event facility that uses gravel parking. Catherine Lozano spoke on behalf of the applicants and 

stated that the local congregation use is only temporary, and the intention was not to use 

the building for continual Sunday church services. The intent of the applicants, she said, was to 

allow the use of the building for worship to visitors of the Farmhouse Inn and event facility 

participants. The Planning Commission didn’t want to force a paved lot on a building that would 

be used only as part of the existing facilities and not for regular church services. They also 

acknowledged that the temporary situation could be extended. They voted unanimously to 

recommend approval of the conditional use request for a church at 1051 Meadow Lane with the 

condition that if regular church services continue past 12 months from approval, then the church 

must comply with all applicable zoning ordinances. 
 

CHAIRMAN MILTON ALLOWED PROPONENTS 

Catherine Lozano spoke in favor of the conditional use. 

 

CHAIRMAN MILTON ALLOWED OPPONENTS TO SPEAK 

No one spoke in opposition.  

 

MOTION by Comm. Ainslie, seconded by Comm. Harris to approve the conditional use for 

temporary church services at 1051 Meadow Lane with the condition set by the Planning 

Commission, that if regular church services extend past 12 months from approval, the church 

must comply with all applicable regulations in the zoning ordinance. Unanimously Approved. 

 

Criteria for Consideration  

        
Section 21.3.1 Required Findings from Conditional Use Approval from the Morgan County Zoning 

Ordinance: 

- 26 -



 
 

4 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 
Madison, Georgia  30650 

1. Adequate provision is made by the applicant to reduce any adverse environmental impacts of 

the proposed use to an acceptable level; 

2. Vehicular traffic and pedestrian movement on adjacent streets will not be substantially hindered 

or endangered; 

3. Off-street parking and loading, and the entrance to and exit from such parking and loading, will 

be adequate in terms of location, amount and design to service the use; 

4. Public facilities and utilities are capable of adequately serving the proposed use; 

5. Granting the request would not be an illogical extension of a use which would introduce  

damaging volumes of (1) agricultural, (2) commercial, (3) industrial, or (4) high density 

apartment use into a stable neighborhood of well-maintained single family homes, and likely 

lead to decreasing surrounding property values, neighborhood deterioration, spreading of 

blight, and additional requests of a similar nature which would expand the problem; 

6. Granting the request would not lead to congestion, noise and traffic hazards or overload public 

facilities, current or planned; 

7. Granting the request would conform to the general expectation for the area population growth 

and distribution according to the Comprehensive Land Use Plan; 

8. Granting the request would not lead to a major negative change in existing (1) levels of public 

service, (2) government employees or (3) fiscal stability; 

9. Granting the request would not have a “domino effect,” in that it becomes the opening wedge 

for further rapid growth, urbanization or other land-use change beyond what is indicated in the 

Comprehensive Land Use Plan. 

 

Staff Comments 

        
See attached for the 2019 Staff Report for the same request. 

Staff has two concerns regarding this request. First is the continued “temporary” status which has no 

apparent end date. The approval for this applicant in 2019 was based on a temporary request. The 

church organization using the building received approval for a church location almost two years ago and 

still need a temporary location. Temporary could be indefinite. Second is the precedent that could be set 

should an approval be given without paved parking. The applicants state in their letter that they are not 

willing to pave the church parking area.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

- 27 -



 
 

1 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 
Madison, Georgia  30650 

           

   Staff Report    2019 

    Morgan County Planning Commission 

  

Property location: 1051 Meadow Lane    

Property tax parcel: 042-003G  

Acreage: 19.79 acres  

Applicant: Ellis and Crystal Johnson 

Applicant’s Agent: N/A   

Property Owner: Ellis and Crystal Johnson   

Existing Use: Farmhouse Inn, conference center, event facility  

Proposed Use: Farm house Inn, conference center, event facility, church  

 

Summary 

        
Ellis and Crystal 

Johnson are 

requesting 

conditional use 

approval to 

operate a church 

on the Farmhouse 

Inn property 

located at 1051 

Meadow Lane. 

Farmhouse Inn, 

also known as 

Hundred Acre 

Farm, is a bed and 

breakfast, 

conference center 

and event facility.  

The church building 

was moved to the 

site to be used as 

part of the event 

facility. 

 

Petition for:  Conditional Use – Church  

        

- 28 -



 
 

2 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 
Madison, Georgia  30650 

The church building is the former Sugar Creek Baptist Church. In late 2015, the pastor for the church 

requested a demolition permit for the historic church building, which was constructed in the 19-teens. 

The Planning office tried to talk him out of it and delayed the demolition permit numerous times. When 

the pastor persisted, Planning recruited the Madison Morgan Conservancy to take over the rescue. The 

MMC convinced the pastor to allow the church to be moved. Ellis and Crystal Johnson welcomed the 

church building to Hundred Acre Farm as part of their event and wedding venue. There was no intention 

at the time for the structure to be used for regular church services.  

The Sugar Creek Baptist 

Church in 2006 when it was 

located at the corner of Sugar 

Creek Church Road and 

Highway 278.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The relocated and 

remodeled church building at 

the current location. The 

applicant and builder did a 

fine job with moving and 

remodeling the church, even 

if it is a little more ornate 

than the original building. 

Given the choice of moving 

or losing one of Morgan 

County’s historic churches, 

Planning staff joined the 

MMC and the community in 

celebrating a preservation 

victory. 

- 29 -



 
 

3 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 
Madison, Georgia  30650 

 The church, as part of the 

event facility, was allowed to 

have a grass parking area (as 

all of our event facilities do). 

The Building Inspector did 

require one paved 

handicapped parking space, 

which was installed (arrow).  

However, if the church is to be 

used as a regular Sunday 

service church, then it has to 

meet the requirements for 

parking, same as any other 

new church. Historic churches 

usually have gravel parking 

lots because they were in 

existence prior to the creation 

of the zoning ordinance. 

Because this church building is 

not longer in its original 

location, it loses that 

exemption. The occupant load for the church is 160 persons, which would require 40 parking spaces, 

including 2 handicapped parking spaces. The Planning Commission may recommend to the Board of 

Commissioners that a variance be extended to the applicant because of the history of the church, which 

would set a precedent for parking lots and historic, relocated church buildings.  

A view of the current parking area 

for the church, showing the 

handicapped parking space. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- 30 -



 
 

4 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 
Madison, Georgia  30650 

This sign was noticed earlier this 

year. Staff had not heard of regular 

services until the recently changed 

Center Pointe Church requested to 

use the space for Sunday services. 

The applicant notes in her letter 

that a local church with 

approximately 20 members want to 

rent the church for services. As a 

church-for-rent, the building would 

be considered a for-profit business 

and not eligible for tax exempt 

status.  

 

  
 

 

- 31 -



 
 

5 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 
Madison, Georgia  30650 

 

Section 7.19.1   Stand-Alone Churches 

 

When permitted or approved as a conditional use in a zoning district, stand-alone churches and their 

customary accessory buildings shall: 

 

• Be located on a lot with a minimum of two (2) acres that fronts on a public right of way or a private 

street that connects with a public right of way; 

• Be set back a minimum of fifty (50) feet from all property lines; 

• Have a minimum ten (10) foot wide natural or planted buffer provided within the required setback; 

• Meet the parking requirements for the occupancy load; 

• Require a conditional use permit for any new church or accessory use such as fellowship halls, 

ball fields, shelters, pavilions, schools, class room buildings, etc. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- 32 -



 
 

6 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 
Madison, Georgia  30650 

Criteria for Consideration  

        
Section 21.3.1 Required Findings from Conditional Use Approval from the Morgan County Zoning 

Ordinance: 

1. Adequate provision is made by the applicant to reduce any adverse environmental impacts of 

the proposed use to an acceptable level; 

2. Vehicular traffic and pedestrian movement on adjacent streets will not be substantially hindered 

or endangered; 

3. Off-street parking and loading, and the entrance to and exit from such parking and loading, will 

be adequate in terms of location, amount and design to service the use; 

4. Public facilities and utilities are capable of adequately serving the proposed use; 

5. Granting the request would not be an illogical extension of a use which would introduce  

damaging volumes of (1) agricultural, (2) commercial, (3) industrial, or (4) high density 

apartment use into a stable neighborhood of well-maintained single family homes, and likely 

lead to decreasing surrounding property values, neighborhood deterioration, spreading of 

blight, and additional requests of a similar nature which would expand the problem; 

6. Granting the request would not lead to congestion, noise and traffic hazards or overload public 

facilities, current or planned; 

7. Granting the request would conform to the general expectation for the area population growth 

and distribution according to the Comprehensive Land Use Plan; 

8. Granting the request would not lead to a major negative change in existing (1) levels of public 

service, (2) government employees or (3) fiscal stability; 

9. Granting the request would not have a “domino effect,” in that it becomes the opening wedge 

for further rapid growth, urbanization or other land-use change beyond what is indicated in the 

Comprehensive Land Use Plan. 

 

Staff Comments 

        
The property is the location of a frequently used event facility, so traffic is not a concern. In fact, the 

driveway for the church has better visibility on Highway 278 than Meadow Lane, which is used for most 

of the events at Hundred Acre Farm. 

 

The church being on the same property as the other uses poses a minor problem. The ordinance 

requires a conditional use when another structure is added to a church property. If Hundred Acre Farm 

requests a building permit for a structure that could be used in conjunction with the church building, 

(either as a solely church-affiliated building or as a general purpose building that may be used by both 

the church and the Farm House Inn) Staff suggests a condition that additional conditional use approval 

should be sought per Section 7.19.1. 

 

The issue of the parking pavement must be addressed. The question is whether the building should be 

treated as a historic church and allowed gravel parking, or as a new church with paving requirements.   

- 33 -



- 34 -



- 35 -



- 36 -



- 37 -



- 38 -



- 39 -



- 40 -



- 41 -



- 42 -



- 43 -



- 44 -



- 45 -



- 46 -


	Top
	Item1.	Scheduled Public Comment-Charles Keith Pharr
	K. Pharr 02022021 Public Comment

	Item2.	January 05, 2021-Public Hearing
	1-5-2021 Public Hearing-draft

	Item3.	January 05, 2021-BOC Meeting
	1-5-2021 BOC Minutes-draft

	Item4.	January 19, 2021-BOC Meeting
	1-19-2021 BOC Minutes-draft-complete

	Item5.	Jan. 2021 Financials
	Jan 2021 Financials

	Item6.	Johnson conditional use
	staffreport.january.johnson.cu

	Item7.	Courthouse Clocktower Repairs
	Courthouse Repairs

	Item8.	County Manager Report
	Item9.	Public Comments on Agenda Items
	Bottom

